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Dear TVH supporters,

Pro-active efforts to explore and ascertain the Group's business
development thrust started to show encouraging signs of fruition
in 2004 - a year that witnessed stable growth for TopAsia and
remarkable business development for Advanced Digital Technology
(ADT) and ChinaCast. After several years of restructuring, TVH
has successfully re-defined its strategic direction and re-engineered
the business platform for long-term prosperous growth. With
the right mix of market demand-led service offerings and support
from a dedicated team of professionals, TVH looks forward to

sustainable growth in the coming years.

Application of information technology in banking and financial
sectors has always been the mainstay of TVH business through
TopAsia for the provision of repair and maintenance services to
self-service banking facilities, and ADT for software development.
While this sector remains a significant growth driver, TVH also
acknowledges the need for business diversification to minimize
risk exposure to cyclical volatility and more importantly to develop

another dynamic revenue source.

After thorough research and feasibility studies, on-line education
for academic qualification and business training is the industry
where TVH has decided to focus on and invest in the future.
Acquiring Beijing Dongshi Shuangwei Education Technology

Company Limited is the first step in this direction.

As information technology evolves in the Mainland China, it is
inevitable that the industry will focus increasingly on value-added
tailor-made solutions, services and applications provided by market
savvy enterprises that fully understand customer demands and
are capable of delivering them. It is the people that support the
IT prowess today. At TVH, we have the best people with the best

practices.
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According to official statistics from Mainland China, the number
of online users will grow 28% to reach 120 million in 2005, all
of whom are potential users of TVH's online education services.
The IT industry accounted for 7.2% of the Mainland’s 2004 GDP,
representing a contribution of RMB909 billion; of which RMB11.3
billion came from application service offerings, up almost 35%
from a year ago, indicating the magnitude of the growth

momentum.

OUTLOOK

2005 will be a year of active business development and expansion.
We believe TVH's new business platform has already taken shape
with TopAsia, ADT and ChinaCast as the pillars of growth. TopAsia
will continue to strengthen its ties with banks in the Mainland to
achieve a 10% growth target in new customers. ADT will focus
on integrated data network, banking solution and outsourcing
business for Japanese market, while ChinaCast is expected to
sign up 2-3 major customers in early 2005 which will further
bolster the segment’'s market presence and help grow the

enterprise market.

Thanks to the shrewd insight and dedicated pursuits of everyone
at TVH, the Group has re-engineered a viable business model for
sustainable growth after years of restructuring. The perseverance

is beginning to pay off, and we should continue to keep a close
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rein on market pulses and evolve in accordance with market E©HEZHTISRE BEHEERNE
demands, and continue to maintain our competitiveness. EESE REBEENBF N
7 4%
————
Chan Tze Ngon FE
Chairman R ¥ &

Hong Kong, 26 April 2005
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group reported a turnover of HK$237,841,000 in 2004
compared with HK$261,692,000 a year ago. Gross profit dropped
to HK$27,165,000 from HK$36,284,000 in 2003. The declines
were primarily attributable to fierce competition, ADT's scaling
down in the business with Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (ICBC) due to the contraction of their IT spending, and
also the market’s slow response to TopAsia’‘s launch of the new

Data Warehouse application in 2004.

Profit margin was down by 3 percentage points to 11% from
14% in 2003. Loss attributable to shareholders was
HK26,853,000, up from HK$15,382,000 last year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003: nil).

REVIEW OF CORE BUSINESSES

IT solutions and systems integration: TopAsia

TopAsia continued to target at the growing banking and finance
sector of China, with the provision of repair and maintenance
services to self-service banking facilities as the core operation.

2004 was a year of solid business development for TopAsia.

TopAsia achieved encouraging business growth with Bank of China
(BOC) and China Postal Bureau when it successfully secured after-
sales repair and maintenance servicing tenders for almost 400
automatic teller machines (ATM) for BOC branches in Henan,

Shaanxi, Chongging and Zhejiang.
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At the annual tender of China Merchants Bank (CMB), TopAsia
secured the service provider position for three of six service
requests for ATMs, automatic deposit machines and automatic
enquiry machines, and also two product dealerships for Diebold
ATMs and revolving cash deposit and withdrawal machines,
therefore making it the largest service provider and product dealer

for CMB.

The development of a standard ATMP software for its ATM system
was a key focus for China Postal Bureau in 2004. TopAsia’'s superb
expertise in the technology allowed it to win the tenders in 11

provinces, including Anhui, Hubei, Hunan, Shaanxi and Zhejiang.

TopAsia continued to lead in the marketing and sales of ATMs in
China. Orders in the amount of RMB40 million were obtained
from Postal Bureaus of Hubei and Zhejiang, BOC Jiangsu Branch,
CMB Shenzhen Branch, Bank of Shanghai and Nanjing City

Commercial Bank.

TopAsia’s cooperation with renowned mainland IT stalwart
UTStarcom, the inventor of “Little Smart” (or Xiaolingtong) mobile
services, has been very successful. Orders in the amount of RMB26
million were secured for the provision of peripherals to Little

Smart facilities and multi-media workstations.

Software: Advanced Digital Technology

The Group’s software vehicle, 55%-owned Advanced Digital
Technology (ADT), has won further recognition as a leading IT
enterprise for its software prowess. It was named a China top
100 software company for 2004 and a top 100 solution provider
among top 500 mainland computer corporations in Computer
Partner World's CPW 500 poll, and a creditworthy enterprise in
2004 by Beijing Zhongguancun Sci-Tech Guaranty Co., Ltd. and

Zhongguancun Business Advancement Institute.
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Importantly, the division’s president Ms Fan Liming was named
one of the Top 10 Prominent Personalities in Financial Technology

as a recognition for her outstanding contribution.

ADT also passed the Gold Enterprise Accreditation for CISCO,
further strengthening its competitiveness in network construction.
In the data centralization process for China Construction Bank
(CCB), ADT has succeeded in broadening its market share in data
transfer, front office system, information interface, and other
niche business segments. Its cooperation with CCB has been
expanded to 24 branches, further extending its influence in

integrated data network and services.

Significant progress was also made in respect of the outsourcing
business for Japanese market, with a revenue growth of 50% in
2004.

Online education through ChinaCast

In 2004, ChinaCast continued to be the Group's strategic
investment to develop the education and training service business
in China, with the technological support of other TVH units. The
K-12 distance learning and educational content solutions segment

continues to be ChinaCast’s principal revenue contributor.

The university distance learning solutions segment shows a
satisfactory and promising performance. In addition to the existing
eight universities which are already generating revenues, two
more universities have been signed up with student enrolment in

progress.

The enterprise networking products and services segment, which
commenced marketing operations at the end of first quarter of
2004, also progressed well. The first major enterprise customer,
Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. is in beta testing and full

commercial service is expected very soon.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead at 2005, TopAsia will continue to control cost,
develop business, enhance profitability and improve operating
performance. The segment will focus its efforts primarily on
further broadening the client base for self-service products and
services, enlarging the scope of services and also expanding the
geographical reach. The segment will also build on its relationship
with major banks, including ICBC, Agricultural Bank of China,
BOC, CCB and Bank of Communications to attain its 10% growth

target in new customers.

TopAsia will also accelerate the development of its data
intergration business. It will continue to work with Ascential and
strengthen cooperation with ETL in product research and sales,
including the development of complementary software solutions
to enhance market competitiveness. It will continue to team up
with EMC to push sales of large capacity storage and contingency
back-up systems to enterprises in the financial, securities and

government sectors.

Through further leveraging on the cooperation with UTStarcom,
TopAsia aims to better capitalize on business development
opportunities for multi-media and telecommunication sectors, and
to supply a large range of peripherals and products. A sales

target of RMB50 million has been set by TopAsia for this year.

ADT's impressive credentials will help drive its business
development efforts. The very strong ties with CCB will help

generate more business in integrated data network and services.
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ChinaCast will step up its efforts in the insurance and banking
sector as its project with Taikang serves as a good springboard
for further inroads. Additional strategic sales opportunities in
these sectors as well as in other key sectors have been identified
and it is expected that an additional 2-3 major customers will be
secured within the first half of 2005. ChinaCast is currently
ramping up its sales, marketing and customer support staff to

meet the demands of the market.

Expansion of ChinaCast’s satellite network operations center in
Beijing is in progress to pave way for the delivery of the latest
DirecWay satellite hub upgrade to enable two-way broadband
satellite services that are essential for growing the enterprise

market in 2005.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net assets

As at 31 December 2004, the Group recorded total assets of
approximately HK$325,450,000 which were financed by liabilities
of approximately HK$190,306,000 and equity of approximately
HK$130,690,000. The Group’s net asset value as at 31 December
2004 decreased by 17% to approximately HK$130,690,000 as
compared to approximately HK$157,173,000 as at 31 December
2003.

Liquidity

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$84,998,000 as at 31 December 2004 (2003: approximately
HK$108,303,000). After deducting bank loans and overdrafts of
approximately HK$45,617,000 (2003: approximately
HK$39,339,000), the Group recorded a net cash balance of
approximately HK$39,381,000 as compared to that of
approximately HK$68,964,000 as at 31 December 2003. As at
31 December 2004, the current ratio was 1.26 (2003: 1.37) and
the gearing ratio was 0.35 (2003: 0.26) which was defined as
the Group's interest-bearing bank loans and finance lease payables

over its total equity.
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Charges on assets

At 31 December 2004, fixed deposits of approximately
HK$5,141,000 (2003: HK$16,470,000) were pledged to banks

to secure banking facilities granted.

Treasury policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and credit facilities provided by banks in
Hong Kong. Subsidiaries in PRC use short-term borrowings in
PRC to finance working capital, which amounted to
HK$45,617,000 as at 31 December 2004. Borrowing methods
used by the Group mainly include trust receipt loans, overdrafts
and term loans. The interest rates of most of these are fixed by
reference to the Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate. Both bank deposits
and borrowings are mainly in Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars (“US dollars”).

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2004, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks in connection with facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$20,000,000.

As at 31 December 2004, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries were utilized to the extent of approximately
HK$1,170,000.

The Group has no material contingent liability in respect of
possible future long service payments to employees under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance as some of current employees
have achieved the required number of years of service to the
Group in order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated under
certain circumstances. A provision has not been recognised as at
31 December 2004 in respect of such possible payments, as it is
not considered probable that the situation will result in a material

future outflow of resources from the Group.
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars
and Renminbi. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal
as long as the policy of the Government of HKSAR to link the

Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect.

Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2004, the Group employed approximately
360 full time staff in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
work experience and the prevailing market price. Performance
related bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance
and medical coverage, training programs and share option

scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chan Tze Ngon, aged 49, is the chairman of the Company.
He founded the Group in November 1993 and has overall
responsibility for TVH's strategic direction, and shapes its business
model and master plan. He holds master’s degrees in mathematics
and computer science from Concordia University, Canada. Before
founding the Group, Mr Chan has more than 18 years of
experience working with multi-national IT vendors, where he had

held senior management positions.

Mr Wu Emmy, aged 48, is the deputy chairman of the Company
and responsible for the strategic and investment planning of the
Group. Mr Wu has over 21 years of experience in IT sales,
marketing and management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Wu
had held various management positions in a leading pan-Asia
systems integrator and was responsible for its overall business
performance in Asia Pacific as well as being the advisor to their

president in Japan.

Mr Tang Kin Hung, aged 44, executive director, takes charge of
the Group’s banking and e-commerce enabling operations in
China. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in social sciences. Mr Tang joined the Group in
February 1994 following previous senior marketing and
management assignments with various multi-national vendors for

over 15 years.

Mr Chow Siu Lam, Cliff, aged 40, executive director, is
responsible for the Company’s financial advisory functions. He
earned his bachelor’s degree from the University of Washington,
US and has over 13 years of experience in accounting and
investment banking. Mr Chow joined the Group in April 2000
and prior to that has held senior positions in leading investment
banks in Hong Kong. He is a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Chow resigned as a director

of the Company on 1 February 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Lo Siew Kiong, John, O.B.E., J.P., aged 65, is an independent
non-executive director. He has over 35 years of senior
management experience in various manufacturing fields in Asia,
ranging from consumer, industrial to aerospace military
specification products manufacturing. He is the honorary chairman
of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, the honorary
chairman of the Hong Kong Standards and Testing Centre and
the chairman of Hong Kong Quality & Reliability Centre of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was also the vice-chairman
of the Hong Kong Productivity Council from 1988 to 1993. In

addition, he serves in several government advisory committees.

Mr Fu Yan Yan, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group. After graduation from the University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China, he joined the Ministry
of Electronic Industry of China and participated in the strategic
development and project management of communications and
computing products in the country. He later founded two
advanced technology companies in Hong Kong with a wide range
of operations in computer technologies, office automation
systems, medical equipments and pharmaceutical research and
production. One of them was listed in Canada in 1992. He was
previously the general manager in charge of the China operations
of a leading IT services company in Asia Pacific and has over 21

years of China-focused experience in the IT industry.

Ms Wang Xi Ling, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
director. Ms Wang is the member of CICPA. She has been involved
in the audit of TianQiao Department Store Co., Ltd. (Beijing
TianQiao BeiDa Jade Bird Sci-Tech Co., Ltd.), the first Initial Public
Offer in Beijing and the Initial Public Offer of JiNan QingQi
Motorcycle Co., Ltd. Ms Wang was also appointed by Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
for the internal audit of Beijing Mass Transit Railway (Group)
Co., Ltd. and Beijing YiQing Holding Co., Ltd. Ms Wang got over
13 years’ experience in audit and accounting. She was also the
founder of accountancy firm. Customer base comprises of various
fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Chu Lik Chung, aged 53, assumes overall management
responsibility for the Group’s banking and financial peripheral
product offering and servicing network in China. He is a graduate
of the Eastern China Normal University, Shanghai with a diploma
in Chinese language and literature. He has more than 14 years

of IT experience and joined the Group in June 2000.

Ms Fan Liming, aged 56, CEO of ADT. Ms Fan graduated from
Yunnan University and joined Nantian Group in 1986 to take
charge of the development of systems integration services for
the finance sector. She was appointed a director, and the vice
president and general manager of the SI department of Nantian
before she moved on to ADT. Ms Fan has over 15 years’ senior
management and marketing experience, and is one of first female
practitioners in the IT industry in Mainland China. Ms Fan was
awarded the Top 10 Outstanding Contributor in Financial

Technology Market in 2004.

Mr Siu Hon Kwan, aged 43, is the logistics manager responsible
for the shipping and logistics functions of the Group. He holds a
professional diploma in Logistics management from Lingnan

University. Mr Siu joined the Group in February 1994.

Ms Tong Pui Wah, Lisa, aged 43, is the Group's qualified
accountant and company secretary. She is a fellow member of
various accountancy bodies in UK, Hong Kong and Australia. Ms
Tong brings 16 years’ experience in finance and administration

with large multi-national groups.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2004.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year, the Group was involved in the distribution of computer
hardware and software products and the provision of computer
technology services. Details of the principal activities of the Group's

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year and up to the date of this report.

Results

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2004 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are

set out in the financial statements on pages 28 to 100.

Summary financial information

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results
and the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group, prepared
on the basis set out in the note below. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.
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Summary financial information (continued) HHERBE (%)

Results ¥E

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
—ZEME “TT=E LT CE . L%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET FET FET FET
TURNOVER =E £ /—
Continuing operations SEEEER 237,841 261,692 188,784 448,684 417,247
Discontinued operations B & IF ¥ - - 155,084 127,703 -
237,841 261,692 343,868 576,387 417,247 1 7
&
T
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBEAIF,/ (&518) <
Continuing operations SEEEEB (29,755) (15,734) (35,317) (89,178) 20,712 =
Discontinued operations BARIEER - - (99,863) 4,855 - :‘
°
(29,755) (15,734) (135,180) (84,323) 20,712 o
Tax BB (175) 1,974 (4,065) (333) (871) f
s
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE Rt DERRER c
MINORITY INTERESTS AER (EB1R) (29,930) (13,760) (139,245) (84,656) 19,841 <
Minority interests DHRRER 3,077 (1,622) (8,624) (4,152) (1,628)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ~ BEREGRAEEL
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ZHR, (CFER)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS (26,853) (15,382) (147,869) (88,808) 18,213
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBHERA A
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Summary financial information (continued)
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31 December

+=—HA=+—H
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
—EENF T -F T F —TE-F —TET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FETT FETT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 86,924 90,257 58,761 137,165 94,675
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 238,526 281,019 264,275 400,488 378,610
CURRENT LIABILITIES TBEE (189,819) (205,835) (143,632) (239,205) (128,364)
NET CURRENT ASSETS TRBEEFE 48,707 75,184 120,643 161,283 250,246
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEA/F
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE 135,631 165,441 179,404 298,448 344,921
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES A B &E (487) (737) (953) (629) (1,529)
MINORITY INTERESTS PERRER (4,454) (7,531) (5,909) (52,072) (4,540)
130,690 157,173 172,542 245,747 338,852
Fixed assets BEE&EE
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company and of the AR EAEBEERTEERNFRNZEBFHEHD

Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial

statements.
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Share capital and share options

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set

out in notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

on page 31, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2004, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus
of HK$39,431,000 is currently unable to be distributed. The
Company’'s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$341,274,000 at 31 December 2004, may be distributed in the

form of fully paid bonus shares.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

IRAS K8 IR
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Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed

or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 40%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 12% of the Group’s total

purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr Chan Tze Ngon
Mr Wu Emmy

(Chairman)
(Deputy Chairman)
Mr Tang Kin Hung

Mr Chow Siu Lam, Cliff (Resigned on 1 February 2005)
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr Lo Siew Kiong, John, O.B.E., J.P.

Mr Fu Yan Yan

Ms Wang Xi Ling (Appointed on 23 September 2004)
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with bye-law 114 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms Wang
Xi Ling will retire and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr Lo
Siew Kiong, John will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Apart from Mr Chan Tze Ngon and Mr Wu Emmy, all the other
executive directors of the Company, are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the provisions of the

Company’s bye-laws.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 15 of

this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no director
had a material beneficial interest, either direct or indirect, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Related party transactions

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in

note 34 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures

At 31 December 2004, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code"),
were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

EERTRAZRRO EHERORES 2#RZR
KA

RZZBZENF+-A=+—H ARRAEERTH
BENAARREMBEAE (EERLEHF RHERK
I (TREHREBEE ) EXVER) 2 B 18R
hhEFT BEARRREZESRBERIE
2R E 2 ERMATCHE SREBE LT ARE
FETERRSNEETR ([BETR EANE
AAFREABMAXZAABERAR ([BRA]) 2
BmSKoRB T

ARTREBRRABBREG 2 HE

Number of issued ordinary
shares and underlying shares
of HK$0.10 each

in the Company held
Personal interests

RFAEAXAREEREHE0I0ETT

Percentage of

Capacity ERTETERREBARA ZEE Notes holding
1% B A R & bt &t BERESL
Director:
BE:
Mr. Chan Tze Ngon Beneficial owner 82,614,000 16.43%
PR S5 £ Em#AEA
Mr. Wu Emmy Beneficial owner 5,000,000 1 0.99%
REG % Em#AEA
Mr. Tang Kin Hung (Mr. Tang) Beneficial owner 15,500,000 2 3.08%
Btk & (Bl k&) Em#AEA
Former Director:
BIEE:
Mr. Chow Siu Lam, Cliff Beneficial owner 5,000,000 1 0.99%
AL FREE EnEBA
Note 1: These shares may be allotted and issued to him upon exercise of  MfiF1: HWERHAELGEAR-_ZTTZ=F+—AETHE

the share option granted to him in November 2003, details of which
are set out in the note 29 (headed “Share Option Scheme”) under
the “Notes to Financial Statements” set out on pages 88 — 93 of
this annual report.

Note 2:  The 15,500,000 shares represent (i) 10,500,000 shares owned by
Mr Tang and (i) 5,000,000 shares which may be allotted and issued
to him upon exercise of the share option granted to him in November
2003, details of which are set out in Note 29 (headed “Share Option
Scheme”) under the “Notes to Financial Statements” set out on
pages 88 — 93 of this annual report.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER AT

ZRERBETENRKEERET BRFE
BN ARFIRFBBEIIAPTH [ HMAM 5t
HTMFE29 MR ERT &) — -

BfaE2: 3% 15,500,000 B 5 5 (VES 6 £ & 2
10,500,000/ B9 R (DATRE R — TR =F
+— AR FEZEREEITE M RS R
1125,000,0000 88 5 - B RAFFIEHHR AN FRE
88F O3B FTH [ MR M FF | BT 295
RRAEaT &l — B



Report of the Directors

EETE®RS

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in

shares, underlying shares and debentures (continued)

In addition to the above as at 31 December 2004, certain directors
have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries
held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of

complying with the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief executive
of the Company had registered an interest or short position in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share option schemes

Concerning the share options granted during the year to the directors
and employees as detailed in note 29 to the financial statements,
the directors do not consider it appropriate to disclose a theoretical
value of the options granted because in the absence of a readily
available market value of the share options on the ordinary shares of
the Company, the directors were unable to arrive at an accurate

assessment of the value of the share options.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short

positions in shares and underlying shares

Other than the directors and chief executive of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, no other person had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded in the register of interests pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO.

Code of Best Practice

None of the Directors is aware of any information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not for any part
of the year ended 31 December 2004 in compliance with the then
applicable Code of Best Practice (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange during the year under review. In the opinion

of the Directors, this meets the same objective as the Code.

To comply with the Code, the Company set up an audit committee
(the “Committee”) on 12 June 1999 with written terms of reference
for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision on the financial
report process and internal control of the Group. The Committee
comprises the three independent non-executive Directors of the

Company.

Under Rule 13.13 and 13.15 of the Listing Rules, the Company is
required to disclose the trade receivables from UT Starcom Telecom
Company Limited and China Construction Bank, Xin Jiang Branch,
the customers of the Group and being independent of the Company
as determined by the directors of the Company, exceed 8% of any
of the total assets of the Group shown in the Group’s latest published
interim report or the Company’s market capitalisation. Further
disclosure of the transaction are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 12 November 2004 and 13 December 2004.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee in 1999, which
comprises three independent non-executive directors, in accordance
with paragraph 14 of the Code. The audit committee meets regularly
mainly to consider the nature and scope of audit reviews, the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
control systems, and compliance with the relevant rules and

regulations.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chan Tze Ngon

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 April 2005
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

E A & 3w FE K A

To the members
Technology Venture Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 28 to 100 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

*  For identification purpose only {£ %z 5
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Report of the Auditors

RS

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2004 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 April 2005
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Year ended 31 December 2004 BE-—ZZTMF+—A=+—HILFE

2004 2003
—ZEENE —EE=F
Notes HK$"000 HK$'000
B &t FET FET
TURNOVER EHEE 5 237,841 261,692
Cost of sales 35 AR AR (210,676) (225,408)
Gross profit EH 27,165 36,284
Other income H b U 55 5 1,816 1,789
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (11,627) (9,693)
Administrative expenses THEE A (37,118) (34,827)
Other operating expenses EfgEB A (9,468) (8,562)
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BREEK R 6 (29,232) (15,009)
Finance costs & AR 8 (523) (725)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AT 5 1B (29,755) (15,734)
Tax HIE 9 (175) 1,974
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS R DBRREZAEIE (29,930) (13,760)
Minority interests DER RS 3,077 (1,622)
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BRRELCBEEEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS ZEEBER 10 (26,853) (15,382)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 11
Basic HAR HK$0.05 HK$0.03
Diluted EE N/A N/A

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER AT




Consolidated Balance Sheet
mREEEBRBR

VYear ended 31 December 2004 HZ—ZEZNF+—A=+—HIFE

2004 2003
—EBNHF —TE=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt iF FET FA&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Fixed assets & 7E & B 12 4,601 5,657
Deferred development costs iE 3E % B K AN 13 1,387 2,266
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity RERZESEEEZR 16 104 =
Long term investment REIRE 17 66,681 66,681
Deposits "e 18 14,151 15,653
86,924 90,257
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories rE 19 28,197 20,724
Accounts and bills receivable FEWERIE R Z & 20 52,267 69,364
Prepayments, deposits and BRFE -Rek 21 50,019 74,089
other receivables H i FE WU
Due from investee companies JE W H% & 1~ A
2RI 17 23,045 8,539
Pledged time deposits 2 #8173 22 5,141 16,470
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 22 79,857 91,833
238,526 281,019
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Accounts and bills payable EREREBERER 23 52,304 58,415
Tax payable JE S B 18 11,670 11,489
Accrued liabilities and other payables EEtBEREMENT 24 79,953 96,277
Interest-bearing bank and other loans S ER1T R E M B K 25 45,617 39,339
Current portion of finance lease payables 7 & 16 S A IR
2 BIER &R &> 26 275 315
189,819 205,835
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 48,707 75,184
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Year ended 31 December 2004 BE-—ZZTMF+—A=+—HILFE

2004 2003
—ZEEMN ﬂ-: —_FTEF Ei
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
K et FET FE&T
NET CURRENT ASSETS ARBEEZFE 48,707 75,184
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERABAR 135,631 165,441
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Finance lease payables BEMEEMNRE 26 254 504
Deferred tax IR E T 18 27 233 233
487 737
MINORITY INTERESTS LERRERS 4,454 7,531
130,690 157,173
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFE
Issued capital BEITRA 28 50,273 50,121
Reserves 1 30(a) 80,417 107,052

Chan Tze Ngon
BRF B
Director

BEE

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER AT

130,690

Tang Kin Hung
il PR

Director

BEE

157,173



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 December 2004 HZ —ZEZNF+—A=+—HILFE

Reserves (note 30(a))

i (Mi1300)
Share Exchange  Accumu-
Issued  premium Contributed ~ Goodwill fluctuation lated
capital account surplus reserve reserve losses  Sub-total Total
BRI Kkt EXRE
B& BEE BABR BHERE e REER N @z
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T FET T FET T FET T FEL
(note 28)
(Hit28)
At 1 January 2003 RZZEZF
—-R—H 50,121 341,071 (19) (43,248) 51 (175,434) 122,421 172,542
Exchange realignment and ~ EXFERFUE
net gains not recognised in -~ REBEFER
the profit and loss account - - - - 13 - 13 13
Net loss for the year EEFBE - - - - - (15382)  (15382)  (15382)
At 31 December 2003and ~ RZZTT=F+_F
1 January 2004 =t-HEk
—TImEF
-A—-H 50,121 341,071 (19) (43,248) 64 (190,816) 107,052 157,173
Exchange realignment and  [E X BERENE
net gains not recognised in -~ REBEFER
the profit and loss account - - - - 15 - 15 15
Exercise of share options T AR E 152 203 - - - - 203 355
Net loss for the year ERFEE - - - - - (26853)  (26,853)  (26,853)
At 31 December 2004 RZZEME
+ZA=+—-H 50,273 341,274 (19)  (43,248) 79 (217,669) 80,417 130,690
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Year ended 31 December 2004 BE-—ZZTMF+—A=+—HILFE

2004 2003
—EZMF —EL=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
st FHT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBKMEZRERE
Loss before tax KR AIERE (29,755) (15,734)
Adjustments for: BT SEELFHE:
Interest income B YA 5 (642) (1,260)
Depreciation FE 6 12 2,700 3,678
Amortisation of deferred development costs R RAAEN 6 879 370
Gain on disposal of fixed assets, net HEETEEEF
= 6 - (268)
Provision for doubtful debts REEE 8,589 8,192
Finance costs BB KA 8 523 725
Operating loss before RiTEELLED
working capital changes A4 B4 (17,706) (4,297)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERDY/(3m) (7,473) 4,221
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and EREERRE
bills receivable EA () 8,508 (8,434)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRRE EE REAM
deposits and other receivables FEWFR A/ (32 ) 11,799 (24,691)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and ENEERRE
bills payables #m,/ G ) (6,111) 32,143
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and BB EREMENRK
other payables #m/ ) (16,324) 16,426
Cash generated from/(used in) operations E¥%HmE/ () 28RE (27,307) 15,368
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREIBEBENGEH 153 -
Overseas profits taxes paid EHBIINETER (147) (527)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEXBREcAS
operating activities BAS CGrd) 38 (27,301) 14,841

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER AT
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2004 HE—ZEE E¢+ A=+—RHIFE

2004 2003
—RENE —ET=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fif st FHT FE T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHEIEZRERE

Purchases of fixed assets BEETEE 12 (1,644) (2,042)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEMBRE - 915
Additions to deferred development costs I E 2 R AR AN 2 0 13 = (2,636)
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity BENLREGEE 16 (104) -
Additional investments in an RIEIZE R F 2 EI

investee company ®E 17 - (15,600)
Repayment from/ WIHERA

(advances to) investee companies BR (B350 17 (14,506) 3,900
Refund/(payment) of deposits for BE (B RE

investment, net BeFE 18,21 13,502 (27,653)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR ERE = 20,000
Decrease in pledged time deposits B E 87 508 2 11,329 11,179
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time BAKRIGA®RR

deposits with original maturity of more “EAZEEKRTEH

than three months when acquired TFERA /(38 m) 280 (34,242)
Interest received B & 913 989
Effect of foreign exchange rate change, net SNERE R FE) 2

TERR 15 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEHsI L2 HE

investing activities WA/ CRdl) 8 9,785 (45,190)
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Year ended 31 December 2004 BE-—ZZTMF+—A=+—HILFE

2004 2003
“EENE —EE=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iokz3 FE T FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEHOIEZ
BeRE
Exercise of share options TEERE 29 355 -
New bank loans MLRITER 45,655 43,585
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (40,283) (16,647)
Interest paid EERELS) (486) (665)
Capital element of finance lease BEHERS
rental payments ZEXRED (290) (687)
Interest element on finance lease rental BMEMAEHRS 2
payments e (37) (60)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEHSIRZBEERNFR 4,914 25,526
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND REeRBEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS RO FEE (12,602) (4,823)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FHIZHEERBREEZEY 57,591 62,414
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZHAER
AT END OF YEAR BeZEY 44,989 57,591
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRBEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERRZOM
Cash and bank balances Be RETEH 22 45,895 57,591
Less: Bank overdraft B RITEX 25 (906) —
44,989 57,591
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Balance Sheet
EEEBX

31 December 2004 —ZEZF+—-A=+—H

2004 2003
—EETNF —ZTT=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &t FE&T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&E 12 460 862
Interests in subsidiaries RHTB AR 2 s 14 104,158 103,122
104,618 103,984
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRRE ZE R
other receivables o Ath jE U R 468 454
Due from an investee company R —HEEE
ANA) 2 FE 17 15 8,408
Pledged time deposits EEAE TR 22 3,000 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEEY 22 29 6,978
3,512 18,840
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET B 1 R E i JE (- 3K 24 2,508 1,090
Interest bearing bank loans Bt BERTTE X 25 856 -
Current portion of finance lease payables — Bh& 7l & f& {+ 5018
Z BNEER & 26 275 315
3,639 1,405
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE(BE) FE (127) 17,435
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEABERADER 104,491 121,419
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Finance lease payables &R E e e 26 254 504
104,237 120,915
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R #E
Issued capital BEITRA 28 50,273 50,121
Reserves 1 30(b) 53,964 70,794
104,237 120,915

Chan Tze Ngon
¥
Director

EFE

Tang Kin Hung
B f2 4
Director

EFE
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31 December 2004 —ZEZNE+—A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The head office and principal place of business of the
Company during the year was located at 8th Floor, Tianjin

Building, 167 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Group was involved in the distribution
of computer hardware and software products and the
provision of computer technology services. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal

activities during the year and up to the date of this report.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards, hereinafter collectively referred to as
the new HKFRSs, which are generally effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The Group has
not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its

results of operations and financial position.
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31 December 2004 —ZZEWF+-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which also
include Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and
Interpretations) issued by HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They

have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2004. The results of the subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated
from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and

balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s

subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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31 December 2004 —ZEZNE+—A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity. The joint venture company operates as
a separate entity in which the Group and the other parties
have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the
assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and
losses from the joint venture company’s operations and any
distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
either in proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

0] a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(i) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(iii) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture company’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture company;

or

(iv) a long term investment, if the Group holds, directly
or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture
company’s registered capital and has neither joint
control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant

influence over, the joint venture company.
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31 December 2004 —ZZEWF+-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company which
is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the

economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves
of jointly-controlled entities is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s Interest in a jointly-controlled entity is stated in
the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly, or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties also considered to
be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or

corporate entities.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of a maximum

period of 10 years.
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31 December 2004 —ZEZNE+—A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business combinations™ in
2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted such goodwill to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves. Goodwill on
acquisitions subsequent to the adoption of the SSAP 30 is
treated according to the SSAP 30 goodwill accounting policy

above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which
remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining
eliminated against consolidated reserves, is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was caused
by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that
was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events

have occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.
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31 December 2004 —ZZEWF+-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

that asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 33%3% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 33Y:%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 33Y:%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in fixed assets and are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit
and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
the operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments in listed and unlisted equity securities,
intended to be held on a continuing strategic or long-term
basis, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an

individual investment basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Long term investments (continued)

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its
carrying amount has occurred, unless there is evidence that
the decline is temporary, the carrying amount of the security
is reduced to its fair value, as estimated by the directors. The
amount of the impairment is charged to the profit and loss
account for the period in which it arises. When the
circumstances and events which led to the impairment in
value cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the
new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable
future, the amount of the impairment previously charged is
credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the

amount previously charged.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
such securities are credited or charged to the profit and loss

account in the period in which they arise.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether
there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss previously
recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use

and its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the profit and loss account

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be
measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which

does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised using the straight-line basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products not exceeding three years,
commencing from the date when the products are available

for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to

completion and disposal.

Accounts receivable

The payment terms granted by the Group vary from project
to project and may include cash on delivery, advance payment
and credit of 30 to 90 days from different stages of the
projects. Trade receivables are recognised and carried at
original invoiced amount less provision for doubtful debts
which are recorded when collection of the amount is no

longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the profit and loss account.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit and loss account or in equity if it
relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different

period, directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences:

. except where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax assets and

unused tax losses can be utilised:

. except where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the

year by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in
the event that such a termination of employment meets the
circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment

Ordinance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Employment Ordinance long service payments (continued)

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future
long service payments to employees, as a number of current
employees have achieved the required number of years of
service to the Group, to the balance sheet date, in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated in
the circumstances specified. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a material

future outflow of resources from the Group.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The financial impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the
Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss
account or balance sheets for their cost. Upon the exercise
of share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by
the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options which are
cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme™)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed

into the Scheme.

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension scheme
operated by the PRC government for its PRC employees, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable, in accordance with the
rules of the scheme. The employer contributions vest fully

when they are made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) from the rendering of services, including fixed price
service contracts, based on the stage of completion
of the transaction, provided that this and the costs
incurred, as well as the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of
a transaction associated with the rendering of such
services is established by reference to the costs
incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be

incurred under the transaction;

(c) maintenance income, on a time proportion basis over

the period of the contract;

(d) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the capital and
reserves section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with

in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the
net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and
their balance sheets are translated to Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the exchange

fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
business segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are as

follows:

(a) the banking and finance systems integration services
segment engages in the provision of system
integration, software development, engineering,
maintenance and professional outsourcing services
customised for banking and finance,

telecommunications and public sector clients; and

(b) the software solutions for banks and public sector
segment concentrates on the banking, e-commerce
and public sectors with a business focus on e-business

operations and online marketplaces.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the assets.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at
the then prevailing market prices.

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for

4. 2EER @)
SRz EMBE RERTRY

ERUTE=DZ2HEEE

(a)

ES g

BFomEs

0

REEERH B2 YA HF (B
B) RETAE AERMXZEH

the Group’s business segments. IR T
Software solutions
Banking and for banks and
finance systems the public sector
integration services BARAAEH
BARERER RABRZEH Eliminations Consolidated
SHRRB BARR i B
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
“EEME -“TT-F “EEME _TT-F “EEME -"TT-F -BEME -TT%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$' 0 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL TiEn TAL TEL TEL TEx
Segment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external ANEE P 78270 111,412 159571 150,280 - - 37841 261,692
customers itz #8
Intersegment sales PBRZHE - - 820 960 (820) (960) - S
Interest income FERA 194 521 213 35 - - 407 556
Other income 4.1 ON 178 440 657 7 - - 835 447
Total 3 78642 112,373 161261 151282 (820) (960) 239,083 262,695
Segment results PHEE (5314)  (4513)  (6,527) 3,421 - - (11,841)  (1,086)
Unallocated interest AARFS
income WA 235 704
Unallocated gains AAENE 339 82
Unallocated expenses RAERT (17,965)  (14,709)
Loss from operating BEXKL
activities B (29232)  (15,009)
Finance costs RERA (523) (725)
Loss before tax BHRAER (29,755)  (15,734)
Tax HE (175) 1,974
Loss before minority Kt L ERE
interests BRiEE (29930)  (13,760)
Minority interests SERFER 3,077 (1,622)
Net loss from ordinary ~ RREEAE
activities EBFEE
attributable to
shareholders (26,853)  (15,382)

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. 2EER @)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) (B (&)

Software solutions

Banking and for banks and
finance systems the public sector
integration services BARAREHR
BAREHESR RABERZEH Eliminations Consolidated
SRS BADE if | &4

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
SRPmE “TTSF CPEWE CTISF CPEME CTISF SREME OIT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 H

T#T TAT TEr AT | TAT TAT  TAR AR

Segment assets ABEE 218547 208964 110702 134248  (135616) (106321) 254,633 256,801

Unallocated assets: RAREE:

Long term investment RBRE 66,681 66,681 /
Others Bt 4136 47,704

Total assets AEBE 325450 371,276

Segment liabilities PHER (172,943) (146,357)  (78,418)  (99457) 135616 106,321  (115745) (139,493)

Unallocated liabilities AAREE (74561)  (67,079) o

hH._

Total libilities a0 (190,306)  (206,572) .

- o

Other segment EthpHER: <
information:

Cash and hank BHARBEE =
balances included LREREA ®
in segment assets g4 44,597 43,880 35,231 40,975 - - 79,828 84,855 3

Pledged time B AN BEE x
deposits included ZEERTH _
in segment assets B 2,141 2,929 - 10541 - - 2,141 13,470 ©

=)

Depreciation and HEREH c
amortisation 1,685 2,082 1,380 1,097 - - 3,065 3,179 <

Unallocated amounts FAEEHE 514 869

3,579 4,048

Provision for doubtful REEE

debts 6,059 6,887 2,530 1,305 - - 8,589 8,192
Other non-cash EEREMA

income/(expenses) / (B%) - 12 - (38) - S - (26)

Unallocated amounts FAEEHE - 294

- 268

Capital expenditure BAEX 1,090 1,884 442 138 - - 1,532 2,022

Unallocated amounts FAEEHE 112 280

1,644 2,302
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical segments

4.

The following tables present revenue and certain asset
and expenditure information for the Group’s
geographical segments.

TEER (@)
(b) HEHB

AEEWEDBZBARETEE
B 2 BEMINR TR

Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Eliminations Consolidated
B HEHBBE i #a
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
“EEME  C-TT-HF CBEME -TTSF CZEEME -TT-F “EEME -TTCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Fir TEr  TExn T i Thn i
Segment revenue: LN
Sales to external migER
customers {26 430 237 237411 261455 - - 3184 261,69
Intersegment sales PHEHEE - - 820 - (820) = - e
430 237 238,231 261,455 (820) - 237,841 261,692
Seqment assets SBEE 580657 584855 254560 254064  (S76556)  (534324) 298,665 304505
Unallocated amounts: APEEE:
Long term investment RERE 66,785 66,681
325,450 371,276
Other segment information:  E# A B &
Cash and bank BHASPEE
balances included in LEER
segment assets Rk 29 6,985 79,828 84,848 - - 79,857 91,833
Pledged time deposits B ASTEE
included in segment LEEAEH
assets B 3,000 3,000 2,141 13,470 - - 5,141 16,470
Capital expenditure BARY 119 280 1,525 2,022 - 5 1,644 2,302

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA




Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &%

31 December 2004 —ZEZPNF+—-A=+—H

TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 5, EXHEKHMWzE
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EXTHEEEEMZERFE (ENKRE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the BERESHTN) B RHERSE 2 EEFE
value of services rendered. All significant intra-Group AEEBETERRAMAZ —VEARFGER
transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. IREREBREE
An analysis of turnover and other income is as follows: EEBREMBESTOT:
Group
rEH
2004 2003 e
—EZNE —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Sale of goods HEEm 208,194 223,915 ﬁ
Provision of computer REE -
technology services By AR % 29,647 37,777 o
o~
Total turnover SO 237,841 261,692 o
o
()
[2 4
Interest income FLEMA 642 1,260 .
Gross rental income e LB A - 32 ‘;
Waiver of an amount due to HRERN—RHB AR -
a minority shareholder of —RDERER ZHIE <
a subsidiary 657 -
Sundry income B A 517 497
Other income Hib A 1,816 1,789
239,657 263,481
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER QA
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LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. REXBLEFE
The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at after REBEEEBZEBENR, (GTA)
charging/(crediting):
2004 2003
—EBOF —ETE=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$‘000
Bt it FE T FHET
Costs of inventories sold and BEHERFE RAIRMH
services provided R 7 2 A A 210,676 225,408
Depreciation e 12 2,700 3,678
Amortisation of deferred BIHRERZERA
development costs 13 879 370
Minimum lease payments THEEBFEERE
under operating leases ZEEMES
in respect of land and buildings 3,140 3,586
Auditors’ remuneration 1% &AM B & 1,400 1,500
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BIHRA (TRIE
remuneration (note 7): BEEMe) (MaE7) -
Salaries e 30,399 26,699
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B 3,917 3,499
Mandatory provident fund M ATE SR
contributions 113 129
34,429 30,327
Exchange loss/(gain), net EHER(BF) FHE 27 (12)
Gain on disposal of LEEEEERTFRE
fixed assets, net - (268)
Provision for doubtful debts R

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued) 6. REEK BB (&)

The cost of inventories sold and services provided for the HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HLFEZ
year ended 31 December 2004 included HK$17,290,000 EHEFERAREHRBE ZKAD BHEHE
(2003: HK$13,289,000), relating to direct staff costs. These BB TR AR 2 17,290,000 7T (=
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed T T = 4:13,289,000 L) ' ZFEEEE
separately above for each of these types of expenses for the ARFALEXSRBREARFESEHRZZ
year. WEEF o

The provision for doubtful debts and amortisation of deferred REERBBEHRRTERKANEHD
development cost for the year are included in “Other N EmRkz [HMMEEER ] Po

operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated profit
and loss account.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE 7. EERLERESHFEEMS
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

W

The remuneration of the Company’s directors disclosed BRI ER AR EB D RHEHE 161153
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong BARBEEHEOT:
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
W
Group L
rEE <
2004 2003 g
—EEMEF —EE=F o
HK$’000 HK$’000 C
FET FET o
(]
Fees: e n:
Executive directors WITES - - ©
Non-executive directors FEHITES = 50 :
Independent non-executive BIUFRNITES :
directors 440 396
440 446
Other emoluments of BITESZHEMBME:
executive directors:
Basic salaries, other allowances BEARF e HMEMEREMF =
and benefits in kind 6,743 6,428
Mandatory provident fund o8 I M A TR & K
contributions 45 36
6,788 6,464
7,228 6,910
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT
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i/ REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE 7.
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7 7L 21,000,000 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T Z 2,000,000/ 7T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T Z 3,000,000/% 7T

The five highest paid employees included three (2003: three)
directors during the year, details of whose remuneration are

set out above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2003: two)

non-director, highest paid employees are as follows:

ESREEESHFEEME (B

MeBR TISBE2EEARNT:

Number of directors

EFAY
2004 2003
—EEmE —FE=%
S 6
= 1
2 1
7 8

RER IEmaHEEREBE=2(ZFZ
ZHEIZR)EE REZHMEHBEER L
o

ReEFEETHRTME(ZTZT=F M
B)FEEREZHMESFBOT:

2004 2003
—EENMEF —TT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Basic salaries, other allowances EAXHE EMEBREDN &=
and benefits in kind 1,375 952

Mandatory provident fund M ATE SR

contributions 24 12

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The remuneration of each of the non-director, highest paid
employees for the year ended 31 December 2004 fell within
the Nil to HK$1,000,000 band.

During the year ended 31 December 2003, aggregate of
15,000,000 and 1,500,000 share options with an exercise
price of HK$0.233 per share were granted to three executive
directors and the two non-director, highest paid employees,
in respect of their services to the Group, further details of
which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. No
share options were granted to the directors nor the five
highest paid employees during the year ended 31 December
2004.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2003:
Nil). During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or the non-director, highest paid employees
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2003: Nil).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
had no significant obligations for long service payments to
its employees pursuant to the requirements of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance at 31 December 2004.

7. EENTEREFEEMES (&)

RE-FENF+-A=+—ALFE
EHEFRBFRAZMEN FEHAE
1,000,000/ T

BHE-_ZZ=F+-RA=+—HILEEFE"
4 #£15,000,0001% % 1,500,00017 77 £ & &
FRR0.233B T 2 BRIEBEBAR AL ARE
ErREEF=ZNTEERWNEHEES
BRaFEE -FAENBRRTEREM T
29- HE_ZTENF+_A=+—HLHF
E-HEESI e EEERTM
BERR R

FRALB|ILEMNEEFHRERABRRE
ez 2B (CBTR=F ) AEER
FALTERAEZSHAHEEZERFREX
M- F RSB E MARNEEHR A
AEBRZRE SERRERBZEEE
(ZZET=F:8\,)-

REAEEERA KETBREGEIR
EAKRER-_TTMEF+_A=1t—H
HHEESVEBEAZRMRBEE-

FINANCE COSTS 8. R®WERK
Group
AEE
2004 2003
—EEME —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FEr
Interest on bank and other loans EARAFAZIBEEZ
wholly repayable within RITREMERFE
five years 486 665
Interest on finance leases BMEEENE 37 60
523 725
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TAX HiE
Group
rEH
2004 2003
—ZEENE —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEr FET
Current: KEE:
Elsewhere H i &= 1,415 1,764
Overprovision in prior year LEEBEREE (1,240) (3,738)
Tax charge/(credit) MESZH (EE) 175 (1,974)

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided (2003: Nil) as
the Group has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. The statutory tax rate for Hong Kong profits
tax is 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

It REEHBEERMERAR (“LiEEEE”), a subsidiary
of the Company established in Mainland China, is exempted
from Mainland China corporate income tax for three years
starting from the year ended 31 December 2001, and
thereafter is eligible for a 50% relief from income tax for the
following three years under the Income Tax Law of Mainland
China. The standard Mainland China corporate income tax
rate applicable to 5C# 238 is 15%. As a result of the
exemptions, 5t it 23 is exempted from the paying of income
tax for the years ended 31 December 2001, 2002 and 2003,
and will be subject to income tax at the rate of 7.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2004 and the years ending 31
December 2005 and 2006. For the years ended 31 December
2003 and 2004, the statutory corporate income tax rates
applicable to the other subsidiaries established and operating
in the Mainland China range from 15% to 33%.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA

AAEBRFAWELEBESERDE
Fl WEFREBMNEHIELRE (2T
ZFE) G BEMNEBUMIBRITEEREA
RERNEEBES ZHERBEF
17.5% (Z T =F:17.5%) - N E bR
FTRERFERBURA N 2 B AR B A EE K
BEBMEBEZBHE RBEMZIRT
EH REREFIFE-

R H B KBRS BOED RN R ER
RERIZZMEBRARIEREESBESR
mAERAR ([LEEE]) BRE-_ZT—
FHA=+—BIFERF=ZFRNEH
RHNFBRRECEMENR BER=ZFF
AERR—FAEH - REBRERZR
EHBAEREMGSHA15% - BEUE
Be LTEHBREZE-_ZTZT-—F.-ZF
—ERZZBE=F+ A=+ -HILEF
EHERCENAEHR RERBE_F
ZHNE+ A=+ —BHIEFEUARBE"
ZERER_FBERFT-_A=+—RHIt
FREAAETISNHEHBNAEH - BEZ
ZE=FR-_FTEWFS+-_A=+—HL
FE NPBERERLREE 2 H S
RAVEREECLEMBRREN F1I5%E
33%-°



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &%

31 December 2004 —ZEZPNF+—-A=+—H

TAX (continued) 9. B\ ()

AR R R EHE A R ATE B RAE R R
HEZAEKERBAIGEBEAZHESH
S (Be) RRERBERAEZREIH
(E®)HEMT:

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to the
Group’s loss before tax using the statutory rates for the
countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax charge/(credit) at the effective tax rates,
are as follows:

Group
rEH
2004 2003
—EEMEF —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEx
/—
Loss before tax M B RS 1B (29,755) (15,734)
Tax credit at the applicable rates to &7 75 [ B 5 /&5 18 i A3
losses in the countries concerned MEFHEZBBEESR (4,603) (2,703)
Income not subject to tax BERBRA (505) (615) w
Expenses not deductible for tax TRl R = 6,559 5,829 .2
Adjustment to opening unutilised EAREaHEmpAeARE :
tax losses resulting from increase BRI A SRIEL AR N
in tax rate - (61) »
Decrease in unutilised tax losses RECEWNB AR MEBEE :
carryforward due to RBAMEEE 2D a
deregistration of subsidiaries = (857) .
Increase in unutilised tax losses AR AT IE E RS AN -
carryforward 22 171 2
Tax losses from previous periods BERBCHESEDA -
utilised (58) = <
Tax charge at the Group’s effective X ANEBEEEHRRAEZ 2 HE
rate i 1,415 1,764
Adjustments in respect of current AFEERFABEBEMED 2 HE
tax of previous year (1,240) (3,738)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BEAEEEBRBETEZ
effective rate MEXE (ER) 175 (1,974)
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of REBENEEE ST IAEE3,284,000/5 7T
HK$3,284,000 (2003: HK$3,320,000) that are available for (ZZTZ=%4:3,320,000/70) « A] 3K 88
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in EXBEZARBEERVEFN -BRE
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been —BEHSGEBIMBAREEEE"
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in W ERBEEEERRATMETEREE
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time. Eo
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER QA
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NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders of the Company dealt with in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 was
HK$17,033,000 (2003: HK$51,141,000) (note 30(b)).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year of HK$26,853,000 (2003: HK$15,382,000) and the
weighted average of 502,434,781 (2003: 501,209,644)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2004 and 2003 have not been disclosed as the
share options outstanding during these years had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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BRREEGBEXRBZFER

RARNBBE-_TTNF+=_A=1+—H
IFEEZHBREANGERREGATE
%2 ¥ K18 /17,033,000 L (Z T F
£ :51,141,000/%8 70) (K #£30(b)) °

BERER

BREXEBEDIREAFERRELRE
¥ 752 #/851826,853,0008 L (Z T T =
£ :15,382,0008 7T) HE A #EITERAK
2 IN#E 5 502,434,781 (=TT =
F:501,209,6440%) 5+ & -

HRBE-_ZRNER-_ZE=F1+_
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FEZEREABRENREEXE ¥
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12. FIXED ASSETS 12. BEIEEE
Group rEHE
Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures and

improvements equipment Motor
HE BR-£E vehicles Total
E 3 R®HE RE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Cost K AE /—
At beginning of year REH] 4,000 24,473 2,512 30,985
Additions NE 95 1,491 58 1,644
Disposals/write-off HE /e (448) (1,036) = (1,484)
At 31 December 2004 R_ZETNEF =
+-—A=+—H 3,647 24,928 2,570 31,145 H
-
Accumulated depreciation: REE: °
At beginning of year REA 3,838 20,348 1,142 25,328 o
Provided during the year EREE 139 1,946 615 2,700 E
Disposals/write-off HE e (448) (1,036) = (1,484) a
o
At 31 December 2004 R_ZETNEF =
+-—A=+—H 3,529 21,258 1,757 26,544 g
e
Net book value: REFE: <
At 31 December 2004 R_ZETNEF
+-—A=+—H 118 3,670 813 4,601
At 31 December 2003 RZZT=F
+ZRA=+—H 162 4,125 1,370 5,657
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT




Notes to Financial Statements
BY 7% 3R 3k B &%

2004 F #® J

Report

Annual

31 December 2004 —ZZPFE+—F=+—H

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BEEEE ®
Company ¥ NN
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements BR-#B vehicles Total
HEMELE k#&E RE HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET
Cost: JDENEE
At beginning of year REH] 1,627 1,023 1,295 3,945
Additions NE 88 24 - 112
At 31 December 2004 R-ZTZNF
+=—A=+-—8 1,715 1,047 1,295 4,057
Accumulated depreciation: ~ ZETE:
At beginning of year RE A 1,560 987 536 3,083
Provided during the year FRRE 54 28 432 514
At 31 December 2004 R-ZTZNF
+-A=+—8H 1,614 1,015 968 3,597
Net book value: BREEE -
At 31 December 2004 RZTTNEF
+=—A=+-—8 101 32 327 460
At 31 December 2003 RZTET=F
+-A=+—8H 67 36 759 862

The net book value of the fixed assets of the Company and ARRRAEEREREMERBEZETE
BEZEERFE BER-_ZTNF+=
B=+—HR#%%327,0008 L (ZEE=

& :759,000870) 2 9HE

of the Group held under finance leases included in the total
amount of motor vehicles at 31 December 2004 amounted
to HK$327,000 (2003: HK$759,000).

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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13. EEBERERAX

Group rEE
HK$’000
FAETT
Cost: ARE
At 1 January 2004 and RNZEZEF—-—A—HB K
31 December 2004 —EEMF+ZA=+—H 6,869
Accumulated amortisation: 2EEH:
At beginning of year i) 4,603
Provided during the year FABE 879
At 31 December 2004 RZZETNF+-_RA=+—H 5,482
Net book value: AR FE
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZTEZWF+=—A=+—H 1,387
At 31 December 2003

R-BE=F+-"A=+—H 2,266
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14. RHEBLF ZzERE

Company
RAF

2004 2003
—E2ENEF ZET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T F¥ET
Unlisted shares, at cost EETRG RKANE 39,631 39,631
Due from subsidiaries FE W Bt /B &) 2 ;RIE 331,989 331,013
Due to subsidiaries FEATHY B A R 2 58 (2,080) (2,140)
369,540 368,504
Provision for impairment BB T (265,382) (265,382)

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited Z SR B EEAR Q7
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14, RHEBRARZER (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEWBRAAIZHBET:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

Nominal value of
paid-up share/

registered capital

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company

Company EmA& #BERE/ NI 3 Principal activities
AT AMREX LY &R 2EHE REBAL TEEH
2004 2003
“EEME —TT=F /—
Held directly:
EERE:
Technology Venture British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Investment holding w
Investments Limited Hong Kong L@k 1,000E T REER “
HEALES/E% >
~
Held indirectly: z
CETEE -
-
Light International British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$10,000 100 100  Provision of =
Holdings Limited Mainland China L EA%10,000% T procurement services -
REANES /HEKE RUERBRY :
Sequent China/ Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$10,000 100 91 Distribution of information
Hong Kong Limited Mainland China &A% 10,0007 T technology products and
B/ mEARE provision of computer
technology services
PHEAMBRERR
REEREM RS
Technology Venture British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Software) Holdings Hong Kong L@k 1,000E T REER
Limited RERLBE/BE
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14.
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration paid-up share/
and operations registered capital
Company EMRL,/ BERA/
AH aEMRERLH AMEFzEE

RHEAR 2B (@)

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company
ENR B
REBAL

2004

ZERENE

Held indirectly: (continued)
MERE: (8)

Topasia Computer Limited ~ Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$10,000
Mainland China 3@ 1% 10,000 1T
Bt/ mBEKE
Topsoft Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
% L@k 10,000% 7T
Windsor Enterprises British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$10,000
Limited Mainland China LM% 10,000E T
RBREAES/HEKE
Advanced Digital British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000
Technology Company Mainland China L@k 1,000E T
Limited RERLHE /HEARE

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA

100

100

100

55

2003

—ZT-F

100

100

100

55

Principal activities

TEEH

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DHEANMRERR
RUEERRMRYE

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

PHEAMBRERR
RESHRMRY

Provision of marketing
services

REDGERERS

Investment holding

REZR
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14, RHEBRARZER (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

Nominal value of
paid-up share/

registered capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Company EmA& HBERE/ NI 3 Principal activities
AH AMREX LY &R 2EHE REBAL TEEH
2004 2003
“EEME —TT=F
Held indirectly: (continued) /—
MERE: (8)
Advanced Digital Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$2 55 55 Provision of systems
Technology Company Mainland China LEk2ET integration services and
Limited BB/ HEARE software development w
RUEZBEKARB R hj;
HHRE °
~
TREEEBER Mainland China Registered capital 55 55 Provision of systems o
BMERAR B KK US$3,000,000 integration services and o
(note 1) AmER software development o
(HzE1) 3,000,000% 7t RUEZBEARB R =
HHRE -
c
<
BERHE (L) BRAR  Mainland China Registered Capital 100 100 Distribution of information
(note 2) B KK US$3,800,000 technology products and
(Fr3E2) (2003: US$2,000,000) provision of computer
afER technology services
3,800,000% 7T NHEMBEEMK
%1 2,000,000% 7T) R B BT AR 7
wEEERERE (£8)  Mainland China Registered Capital 100 100 Provision of system
BRRA B KR US$1,000,000 integration and
(note 3) afER maintenance services
(F13E3) 1,000,000% 7T REZGEXRRERS
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14.

Notes:

1. it R L U5 B KT AR 2 A is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited in Mainland China for a period of 15 years
commencing from the date of issuance of its business licence
on 31 October 2000.

2. TERE (E8) BRAF is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in
Mainland China for a period of 20 years commencing from
the date of issuance of its business licence on 29 November
2001.

3. = R RTE (£/8) BBR A A is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in
Mainland China for a period of 20 years commencing from
the date of issuance of its business licence on 28 January
2002.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

15. GOODWILL 15.

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, on the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill in respect of
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001 to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves. The amount of
goodwill remained in consolidated reserves, arising from the

acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, is as

RHEAR 2B (@)

o :

1. I RAEESBEERTERAR BRI
& 1> % - f Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited #F B K FERC S - FR =
ZETF A=t - HEEMBELR
HEdRMt+aF-

2. BEME (L8 BERAFTRBEIED
% ' 4 Topasia Computer Limited
RERYL B_TZT—F+—A=+N
AEERRBRELASEF AR - 1TF-

3. BEESEKRY (L8) BRARAR
HNE 1% - B Topasia Computer Limited
REBRAKERYL H-FT_F—A=
TABEERRBREH SRR -1
Fo

EXZeRARLRMINZARAMEARY
RIBPEAFEREARBRASEEE
FEEBALDZAR -EEERR/REE
HBARZHERSREBR TR

[k

AN T MR MM AR SRS A E
AIZE305E M 5 AEBER ST EHLER
FEI0W| BB HAER—FTT—F —
A—RAEWEBELE ZAE N BEA &
BEE- R _ET—F— A — B KEN
BRRAMELENRENRGARBEZHER
BE

follows:
HK$’000
FHET
Cost: BN :
At beginning of year and RENE_ZTZTMF
31 December 2004 +=—A=+—H

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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16. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY 16. RiEEZ4ISEER
Group
KEE

2004 2003

—EETNF —EE=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT

Share of net assets, unlisted DIEEEFE LT 104 =

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEZESEBZFEOT:

W

Percentage of

Place of Voting

registration Ownership power Profit  Principal
Name Business structure and operations interest ZE sharing  activities "
A ERER AMEREE Y EAEEER BAk SEEF  FEEH W
ILREE—LEH Corporate Mainland China 33.33 33.33 33.33  Provision of S
BRAFE | B AR system integration <
services and »
software ;
development o
REZRBARE .
BB -
©
=1
EREE DM ERRAA is an equity joint venture bR —LDEEERAR AL R -
established by 1t 5 %t # ZUf {5 B B flt A R 2 A and two joint BEERMERAREMRAPBAKRESE <

venturers in Mainland China for a period of 50 years
commencing from the date of issuance of its business licence
of 27 September 2004. It is accounted for as a jointly-
controlled entity by virtue of the fact that neither the Group
nor each of the joint venturers can exercise unilateral control
over its economic activity. Since its registration, 1t &= 5L # —

LEF B PR A &) has not commenced operation.

The jointly-controlled entity is not audited by Ernst & Young
Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young International member

firms.

AR zBAAERR] KEMAHEEE
HREHAH _ZTZMFAA -+ LA
R+ -ARAEERERN—FZAE
TP REE - LREAERAFZ
8B R B 1T 0 B8 5 T 4% I RE - AL R R
—LEMEBERARIERREHERA
ReBREMUAR b REE - LREBERRA
A AR ES-

ZAFZEHERYIFABELKGAME
B LK EMEREKE RREX.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER QA
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17. LONG TERM INVESTMENT 17. RERE
2004 2003
—EENMEF —ETT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEr FET
Investments in securities, at cost: BHRE RRA:
Listed outside Hong Kong BEABEI LT 66,681 =
Unlisted FEEM = 66,681
66,681 66,681
Market value of listed investment EHERERT-A=+—HZ
at 31 December mE

The unlisted long term investment as at 31 December 2003
represented the cost of the Group’s investment in a 19.9%
equity interest in ChinaCast Technology (BVI) Limited (“CCT”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. CCT is
an Internet access and content provider based in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and is principally engaged in the provision

of Internet and related services in Mainland China.

During the year ended 31 December 2003, CCT underwent a
group restructuring to rationalise the structure of the group
of companies including CCT (the “CCT Group”). ChinaCast
Communication Holdings Limited (“CCH”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability on 20 November
2003, acted as the listing vehicle of the CCT Group. In May
2004, the shares of CCH were listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX”). At 31
December 2004, the Group’s investment cost in the CCT
Group amounted to HK$66,681,000 (2003: HK$66,681,000)
and the Group’s holding in the CCT Group was diluted from
19.9% to approximately 14.96% after the listing of shares
of CCH on the SGX since May 2004. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has no significant influence on the CCT

Group.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA

78,629 -

R-_TEZE=F+_A=+—H kLR
Hi4% & BD 78 & @ 7 ChinaCast Technology
(BVI) Limited ([ CCTJ ) 19.9% % K 25 2
BRERAR - CCTREBR XS TMAL-
BUEBRPEAAEAREN Y BHEER
REERABTHER FEEPBEARERM
B Bt 48 I A BA AR 75 o

REBE-_TT=F+_A=+—ALHF
B CCTEMTSEBEEMA UBERIECCTE
NERA([CCTHRE]) R BERBE- RN =
TE-Ft+—A-t+REEREFEMAKT
2 ChinaCast Communication Holdings
Limited ([CCHJ)BCCT&EZ ET AR R
—ZETNFR A CCHZRMD RTINS FH
R ([FMEEHRZZAH]) LR =
TEEWNF+_A=+—H AEERKRCCTE
@ 2 % & KA 566,681,000 L (ZEZ
=%:66,681,000/#C) B _EZMFH
FACCHRMEMMFEHFZ F A Lk &
EERCCTREZ FREML19.9%EEE
#]14.96% - EER A AKRENCCTEE T
mEMEAZE-
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17. LONG TERM INVESTMENT (continued) 17. REBRE @)
The amount due from the CCT Group is further analysed as FEWRCCTE B RIB#E—FS DB T:
follows:
Group Company
rEE A T
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EEMEF —TT-F —EEMEF T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Wt &t FAET FET FET FAET
Loans advanced to the B¥ FCCTHRH
CCT Group, unsecured ZEEBER (3 23,030 6,000 = 6,000
Other receivables H b B UK (b) 15 2,539 15 2,408
W
23,045 8,539 5 8,408 L
=
Notes: BiaE - g
o~
(a) The loans advanced to CCT of HK$6,000,000 as at 31 (a) RZZTE=F+-A=+—H mCCT -
December 2003 was unsecured, interest-bearing at the Hong 21 2 & 76,000,000/ 7T & EIK T 1% o
Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per annum and was repaid BTRERMNRINEFEFE YER a
in May 2004. —RENERAEE. .
In January 2004, the Group advanced to the CCT Group an RZEENF— A AEERCCTER ©
aggregate amount of RMB25,500,000 (equivalent B2 IS A R #25,500,0007T (49 2
approximately HK$24,057,000) for their working capital 18 & 7 24,057,000 70 ) * AR E R c
purpose before the listing of CCH’s shares on the SGX. The CCHROEF MK FEHFZ S EMATZ i
balance bore interest at the then prevailing bank borrowing BEESE AR EAREERNE
rates in Mainland China and were financed by the Group’s BRTEENRG S AAEER T
bank loans drawn down in January 2004, which were secured TMFE— BIRIMIRITERENM B
by pledged bank deposits of the CCT Group amounting to CCT# [ 3,300,0005% T (& R
US$3,300,000 (equivalent approximately HK$25,740,000). 25,740,000 7T) 2 B M RITF HAE
The CCT Group repaid RMB1,000,000 to the Group during EH - RBE_TTNF+_A=+—
the year ended 31 December 2004 and the balance as at 31 AEFE CCTREMASBERAR
December 2004 amounted to RMB24,500,000 (equivalent #1,000,00000 R_ZEZEWMFE+_A=
approximately HK$23,030,000). The balance is repayable on +—RAZ & &% A ARE24,500,0007T
or before 30 April 2005. (#9718 & 723,030,000/ 7T) - 4258 E R
—ETREMA=t A ZAIEE-
(b) The other receivables due from the CCT Group are unsecured, (b) CCTEEER Z E W ERFEAER
interest-free and repayable on demand. M RERERERESR:
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER QA
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DEPOSITS

On 3 November 2004, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with a business associate pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to acquire (the *““Acquisition”)
a 20% equity interest in Beijing Dongshi Shuangwei Education
Technology Company Limited, a company registered in
Mainland China, and principally engaged in the provision of
postal service, for a consideration of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent approximately HK$14,151,000). The transaction
constituted a discloseable transaction under the Listing Rules,
further details of which are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 17 January 2005. As at 31 December 2004,
the Group had already paid an aggregate amount of
RMB15,000,000 (equivalent approximately HK$14,151,000)
as deposits. The Acquisition was completed in March 2005.

It is accounted for as a long term investment of the Company.

Included in deposits at 31 December 2003 were deposits of
HK$15,653,000 paid by the Group for certain investment in
another Mainland China company principally engaged in the
provision of portal services in Mainland China. The deposits
were secured by a guarantee executed by a third party as
determined by the management. All of these deposits were

refunded to the Group during the year.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA

18.

B

R-ZZETNF+—A=ZH FEEE—FK
EBBMERNAT LB REHE b AR
AlE &R ERRE AR 15,000,0007T
(4940 % 7 14,151,000/ 70 ) WE (U
B RPBEAEZMR FE2RFREDE
Rz AR RRMERAERMHAZEA
PR A B 20% R Ak o R & E AR A 1t 1A
REHEBRAETHERR S E—FHBEAR
RAARAMA-_ZZERF—A++tRAZE
e —_ZTENMFE+_A=+—H KEH
B X 14 # A K% 15,000,000 (448 E
714,151,000 7T) tERiE S - WHE R =
TTERAF=-ARK - REMERAE K
MAZEBERARIERARTDRERE A
E—Eo

RZZEZ=ZF+_A=+—H R&BHE

A

AEERRTERES —KETEREET
BAEREAPIRB Z AR ZE TREM

¥ 1% 415,653,000/ 7T - i & JH IR E 1R B
REUNEZFZEREBER - EEERN
FRE2EELAEER-
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19. INVENTORIES 19. FE&

Group

rEH
2004 2003
—EEME —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEx

Information technology FHEEE 2

products held for resale BB E® 20,353 13,217

Bt
s
u]

Work in progress

;

7,844 7,507

28,197 20,724

) ) ) ) e e e S e 1 e w

None of the above inventories was carried at net realisable REER Ll EWFRITERFEA W
value at the balance sheet date (2003: Nil). R(ZEZE=F %) =
o

o

o~

o

o

(o}

[2 4

©

=)

o

c

<
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 20.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at
the balance sheet date, based on invoice date and net of

provisions, is as follows:

BWiRERRE

REER KBERAAREEIL MR E
BRZEBYRBRRZBRREDITWT:

Group

rEH
2004 2003
—E2ENEF ZET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T F¥ET
Current to 90 days BIERZ= 90K 37,143 47,754
91 days to 180 days 91X £180K 2,990 3,566
181 days to 365 days 181K £ 365K 5,007 2,275
Over 365 days 365K A E 7,127 15,769

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable is an amount
due from a minority shareholder and a related company of
the Group, of which certain directors of a subsidiary of the
Company are directors, of HK$2,515,000 (2003:
HK$2,455,000) and nil (2003: HK$3,703,000), respectively,
which are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered

to other customers of the Group.
As at 31 December 2004, an amount of HK$363,000 (2003:

Nil) of the Group’s account receivable is pledged to secure a

bank loan facility (note 25).

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA

52,267 69,364

AEFBZEWRERERKRASEE —E D
EREREBELR (KRR —HRBR
AleETEEREEE) RED 5
2,515,000/ 7T (— T & =4 : 2,455,000/
7T) REFET (ZEE=4:3,703,000%
L) BEAEEGETHMEP ZEAOEE
1SR T AEE-

R-BENE+-_A=+—B KA&EEE
I B I5363000/%7E(_ ST ) ER
BITERBMEEL KA (H5E25) °
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PREPAYMENTS,
RECEIVABLES

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2003 was an amount of
HK$12,000,000 in respect of deposits paid for an aborted
investment in a company established in Mainland China which
is principally engaged in the provision of software and
technical support services for Internet content providers in
Mainland China. The balance was fully refunded to the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2004.

As at 31 December 2003, the aggregate amount of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables includes an
amount of HK$29,554,000 of advances to a business associate
to provide for its working capital purposes. The balances
bear interests at the then prevailing bank borrowing rates in
Mainland China. Part of the amount of the advances to the
business associate of approximately HK$25,755,000 was
financed by the Group’s bank loans (note 25), which were
secured by a pledged bank deposit and a corporate guarantee
of the business associate amounting to RMB27,000,000 and
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$25,472,000 and
HK$2,830,000), respectively. The balance was fully settled in
September 2004.

21.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBER QA

ANREBR - BREREMERR

R-_TEE=F+_A=+—H A£EE
RIFRIE - 1R I E ftb FE U 7R B2 45 12,000,000
IT %R E R BB — RIE P B R RE K
NWEEBREAETBREAEEBENDHE
EREEG R ERE 2 AR ZERK
HREMENZS BREEREBEE_TZT
ME+-A=+—ALFERZHEDAE
£E-

R-ZEE=F+-_A=+—H BHKE:
12 & K E fth B WK 48 B8 B 35 29,554,000/
T EERBHEATBMNUEEES
BECABRZBR -ZERBRFPBEAKNE
WATIRATE RN T 5 8 o 7O 5% B ) ZE TS Wi
BAT I 28 5RF 425,755,000/ T
AEBRITER (MI5E25) B ZEER
IAEH A+ 554/ AR27,000,000
7T & A R #3,000,0007T (% 30 & ®
25,472,000/ 7t 122,830,000/ 70) 2 B
RBITIFRR A A EREE R -HRED R
—TENMFNAZHES
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. BEeRBRESEEY
Group Company
xE QD F]
2004 2003 2004 2003
—BENF —TT=F ZEBENFE _"TIT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET FAET
Cash and bank balance ReRIBITHEH 45,895 57,591 29 6,978
Pledged time deposits BEHEBEBHER 5,141 16,470 3,000 3,000
Other time deposits with BARRIEA
original maturity of more HEa=EAz
than three months when Hth F HIF R
acquired 33,962 34,242 - -
84,998 108,303 3,029 9,978
Less: Pledged time deposits  J&: B EHEFER (5,141) (16,470) (3,000) (3,000)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 79,857 91,833 29 6,978

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$74,719,000 (2003: HK$80,161,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA

REER RNREEUARB ([ARKE]) &
HrReRAESEEYWRT4,719,000/ T
(ZZET=%:80,161,000/87T) - AR
AEBRAGAREMER A BEPFEX
BoE HNGE & 11 168 11 B 45 B - 5 B e A+ BEE B 3B
RE RNEBEBEFBFTETINEER
ZHRITHARBHABEMER-
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23.  ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE 23. ENRERERERE
Group
rE
2004 2003
—E2NHF —ETE=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i i FET FET
Trade and bills payable R85 RERRE 51,372 54,224
Due to certain minority shareholders & #& T DR E 2 I8 (a) 325 1,452
Due to related companies ENEBEQRZRE (b) 607 2,739 L~
52,304 58,415
Notes: BiaE -
W
(a) The amounts due to certain minority shareholders of certain (@) EBNTETHBARE T8RRI IR ks
subsidiaries represent trade payables, which are unsecured, HAEMNE SERIE ML FRIE T EIE <
interest-free and are repayable according to the terms agreed W 2B RERBEZELHEREBE g
with these minority shareholders. ZIERER ~
(b) The amounts due to related companies, representing trade (b) BN TEBRERR 2 REMEMNTAR o
payables to certain related companies in which a director of RESNETHES S TEBRERQR o
the Company is also a director, are unsecured, interest-free ZENESRE Mt SREEER. 2
and have no fixed terms of repayment. CEREBTEENRE- _
©
=)
o
=
<
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23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE (continued)

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the

balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

23. ENREREE (&)

REER KBEEZARREE BN
ARBRBZERESHTAT

Group

rEE
2004 2003
—EZTNEF —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET TFHET
Current to 90 days BN EfZ 90Kk 25,981 47,665
91 days to 180 days 91X £180k 187 1,217
181 days to 365 days 181K £365K 10,740 1,532
Over 365 days 365K A £ 15,396 8,001

24. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

52,304 58,415

24, EFEERHMEMSK

Group Company
xE KAF
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EEME —TT=F CZFENF _—TT=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FAET FET FET FAET
Accrued and B &
other liabilities HaE 55,245 71,569 2,508 1,090
Due to a minority B —XKKI B A7
shareholder of —RLEREZ
a subsidiary (note) X (ffz) 24,708 24,708 - -
79,953 96,277 2,508 1,090

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes:

Part of the amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$13,574,000 (2003: HK$13,574,000) represents the
outstanding purchase consideration payable for the acquisition of a
55% shareholding in a subsidiary in 2000. This balance is unsecured,
interest-free and is repayable on demand.

The remaining balance of approximately HK$11,134,000 (2003:
HK$11,134,000) represents an amount advanced from the minority
shareholder to provide for working capital of this subsidiary. The
balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

24.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT

FEaEREEMSR @

it

HAORN—RMBRAR —BLBRR 2 KIENR
13,574,000/ 7t (=& & = 4 : 13,574,000/
L) BT TFYE KK E A RI55%MRE
ZHAEEBERE UHBRBAEER 22 RAE
FEZE Sk Ao

# B #) 11,134,000 T (= &
11,134,000 70) DR R T FiZ
EEBES VB - EARIER 2 RAMR

ot yem
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER LOANS 25. HMESRITRHEMER
Group Company
AEE AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
—BBNE —TE=F Z—FENFE —TT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET FET FET

Bank overdrafts repayable on ZBJE Z3k(EiE 906 - 856 -

demand, unsecured RITFEZ WIEA

Bank loans repayable within B — iﬁ\ﬂaﬁaz

one year, secured RITEF BHEIT 41,981 34,811 = =
Trust receipt loans repayable ZBR—FREEZ
within one year, secured ErEEE»-
BHA 1,170 4,528 - =
Other loans repayable within B/ —F R EE 2
one year, unsecured Hth B & 1,560 = = =
45,617 39,339 856 -

As at 31 December 2004, the Group’s banking facilities were RZZZWF+-_A=+—H KAEER

secured by: TEENUTISEERR:

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to (i) AR B 2 20,000,000 7T (=
the extent of HK$20,000,000 (2003: HK$20,000,000); LT =4:20,000,00057T) XA HE

R

(ii) the pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting (ii) AEBEBHEREROR
to approximately HK$5,141,000 (2003: 5,141,000 L (Z T T = F -
HK$16,470,000 ) (note 22); 16,470,000/ 7t) (Ff&E22) :

(iii)  the pledge of the Group’s accounts receivable of (iii) NEE AR 385,000 (HEE
RMB385,000 (equivalent approximately HK$363,000) 7 363,000 Jr ) FE U AR 18 2 K R
(2003: Nil) (note 20); (ZZTZ=F:F) (M3F20):

(iv) the pledge of bank deposits of the CCT Group of (iv) CCT£ [#3,300,000% 7t (X9HHE
US$3,300,000 (equivalent approximately 25,740,000/ 7T ) $R1717 %2 17
HK$25,740,000) (2003: Nil); (ZEZT=F:8\):

(v) the pledge of certain motor vehicles and properties (v) RAR—RIF2EAMBAR—BE
owned by a director and certain officers of a non- ERETERBEREEE TAE
wholly subsidiary of the Company (2003: Nil); and EWEZER(ZTZE=F &)

&

(vi) unlimited personal guarantees executed by the director (vi) RAR—RIFZEMBAR 2 —%
and certain officers of the non-wholly subsidiary of EERETERBEMEL CER
the Company (2003: Nil). BEAER(ZZEZT=ZF:8])-

As at 31 December 2003, the Group’s banking facilities were RZEE=F+=_RA=+—H Fx&EHZ

also secured by: RITRLE A T I B EEE R

(i)

(1)

a corporate guarantee executed by a business
associate of the Group to the extent of HK$2,830,000;
and

the pledge of bank deposits of the Group’s business
associate amounting to RMB27,000,000 (equivalent
approximately HK$25,472,000).

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 26. MEHEEERNSNE
The Company and the Group leased a motor vehicle for ARARRAEERE-—RAREBRARZ
business use. This lease is classified as a finance lease and AECNIEREN AMEMRE  HEREEH
has remaining a lease term of more than two years. BE k-
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease REER REMEZ RAREEHRSLED
payments under finance leases were as follows: ™
Group Company
rEE AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EENE —TT=F ZEENF _—TZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE&x F&x FE&x
Amounts payable: FE AT FRIE
Within one year —F RN 311 326 311 326
In the second year E-F 232 311 232 311
In the third to fifth BE=ZEERF
years, inclusive (HEME
BIEAER) 58 290 58 290
Total minimum finance MEMEERK
lease payments HeHsE 601 927 601 927
Future finance charges KRR E B R (72) (108) (72) (108)
Total net finance lease BEMREREN
payables FRIE 4B F R 529 819 529 819
Portion classified as IRRBEE
current liabilities =i (275) (315) (275) (315)
Long term portion REHD 254 504 254 504
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 26. MEMEERNITE@
The present value of minimum lease payments under finance MEHEZREHSRELE - SHNE
leases is further analysed as follows: T
Group Company
rEH AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EENFE —TT=F ZEENF _—TZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable: JE A R R -
Within one year —F R 275 315 275 315
In the second year E-F 220 277 220 277
In the third to fifth BE=ZEERF
years, inclusive (HEMEF
BEEAN) 34 227 34 227
Total present value of TEHAEZ
minimum lease payments WEHEE 529 819 529 819
27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EELEHIE
Group
rEH
2004 2003
—EEOEF —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T F&T
At beginning of year RENR+ZA=+—H
and 31 December 233 233
The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities AEBZEERBEBEEZZNMD A MR
represented accelerated depreciation allowances. ERG-

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. KA
Shares R’ 5
2004 2003
—EENMEF —ET=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FET
Authorised: JETERRA -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares BREEINE LY
of HK$0.10 each & A% 1,000,000,000% 100,000 100,000
/—
Issued and fully paid: EEITRARRKRA:
502,729,644 (2003: 501,209,644) SR E({E0.10/8 T2 & B
ordinary shares of 502,729,644 (=TT =4
HK$0.10 each 501,209,644%) 50,273 50,121
b
B
During the year, the subscription rights attaching to F 1 1,520,00017 FEIREFTH B REED -
1,520,000 share options were exercised at the subscription RRBETR0.233BITEITE (H5E29) °
price of HK$0.233 per share (note 29), resulting in the issue i & AR & R E 171,520,000 F AR &
of 1,520,000 shares at HK$0.10 each for a total cash H0.10/8 Tz &t ° z
consideration. 2
o
A summary of the above movements of the Company’s issued AARBETERRRA 2 Lt S8 =
ordinary share capital is as follows: T 2
e
Share <
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BTRAHE BRITRE B 5% ER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2004 R-ZZEME
- 501,209,644 50,121 341,071 391,192
Share options exercised BT R E 1,520,000 152 203 355
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZEME
+-A=+—-H 502,729,644 50,273 341,274 391,547
Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 12 June 1999 (the “Previous Scheme”), the Company
granted certain options to directors and employees of the
Group, including the executive directors of the Company, to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. In order to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
on granting options under share option schemes, which took
effect from 1 September 2001, the Previous Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to the ordinary resolutions
passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2003. Accordingly, no further
options can be granted under the Previous Scheme as from
30 May 2003. However, for the options remaining
outstanding under the Previous Scheme, the existing rights

of the grantees are not affected.

Pursuant to the Previous Scheme, the subscription price is
equal to the higher of the nominal value of the shares of the
Company or 80% of the average of the closing prices per
share of the Company quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the share options. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options were able to be granted under the Previous
Scheme could not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of

the Company from time to time.

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company may grant options
to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. A
summary of the New Scheme is as follows:

(@) Purpose - To enable the Company to grant options
to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives and rewards for their

contribution to the Group.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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BREBEERTE REEHENRARARN
HEEHARTBRMNEZERERL A S
AIAER S HEBRZ AR TFEETE
B0 zBmE -REEAMETTREZ
BRETRBORMEE KRZTEEBEH
RRBNEEEHTRAL0% -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Eligible

Participants

(c) Total number

of shares
available for
issue under
the New
Scheme

(d) Maximum

entitlement
of each
Eligible

Participant

(e) Period under

(f)

which the
shares must
be taken up
under an

option

Minimum period
for which
an option must
be held before
it can be

exercised

Being employees or executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including their respective executive and
non-executive directors) and suppliers,
consultants and advisers who will or have

provided services to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Scheme may not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in

issue.

The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the
date of grant may not exceed 1% of the
number of shares of the Company in issued

at the date of grant.

The period during which the options may
be exercised is determined by the board
of directors of the Company at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be
exercised after more than 10 years from
the date of adoption of the New Scheme,
subject to early termination of the New

Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be

exercised.

PR

© REH - MERBHAICELEMA
ATET BITEZERTERERERE
FTE#T TEEARETZIROL
B AARARARCES

Z B
BE P1730% o

d) BAEHR - NEERLAHLEN+=
2R

p
H

(e) Rz — ATEBEREZAREHA
NRAEEEREBBERE:
ARE  ERAFHBEHERTF
Bz  BRASITEBERE MG
il BIFTIRATAS AL -

fB Rk

(f 11 - METEBRENARE -
BEEHRZHAE-
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(g) Basis of -
determining
the exercise

The exercise price must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the
price Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The New Scheme remains in force until
29 May 2012 unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

(h) Remaining -
life of the
New Scheme

(i) Period within - 28 days from the date of the offer of

which payments/ the options.
calls/loans
must be made/
repaid
() Amount payable -  HK$1.00

on acceptance of
the option

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The 1,520,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 1,520,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$152,000 and share
premium of HK$203,000 (before issue expenses), as detailed
in note 28 to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 49,855,000
(2003: 51,780,000) share options outstanding under the share
option scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 49,855,000 (20083:
51,780,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
proceeds, before relevant share issue expenses, of
HK$14,750,000 (2003: HK$15,198,000).

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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71,520,000 BERREEITE A A A
i % 471,520,0000% @ AR - LA K> Bl B ¥
fig 78 152,000 7T & % 17 & € 203,000/% 7T
(MR ETHEZA BN B REM
F28°
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EE WEREREESETE AAT
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31 December 2004 —ZZEWF+-A=+—H

29.

The following share options were outstanding under the share

option scheme during the year.

At
1 January
2004
Grantee R-Z22ME
ERA -B-A
Directors %
Mr. Wu Emmy 5,000,000
REGEE
Mr. Tang Kin Hung 5,000,000
Rt
Former director
HES
Mr. Chow Siu Lam, 5,000,000
Cliff
BORAE
Other employees
HftfEE
In aggregate 17,560,000
£8

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercised Cancelled
during during
the year the year
AEEfR AEEEH
(1,520,000) (405,000)

At

31 December
2004
R-ZEME
TZR=t-H

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

15,635,000

Date of grant
RiLAH

27 November 2003

27 November 2003

27 November 2003

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZEREEBER AT

BRERE (®)

FR-BREEETHARTEZBRE

mF

Share price of
the Company

at grant date **

REH
*  BRERE

o ZRBEE

HK$0.23

0.23% 7

HK$0.23

0.23%7

HK$0.23

0.23%7

HK$0.23

0.23% 7

Exercise

price ***

Exercise period
of share options

RRiEZ

frEE = s

HK$0.233

0.23357

HK$0.233

0.23357

HK$0.233

0.23357

HK$0.233

0.23357

27 November 2003
to 29 May 2012

-FF=
5=
—%RZ

+-B-t+tH
2%k

LA-tAE

27 November 2003
to 29 May 2012
Z%%c%

t-A-t+tH

27 November 2003
to 29 May 2012

~2%=
%2

t-A-t+tH

27 November 2003
to 29 May 2012

—-FE =
BE -
—TR

T-A-t+tR
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BREFTE

Number of share options

BREHE
Share price of
At At the Company Exercise
1 January Exercised Cancelled 31 December at grant date ** period of
2004 during during 2004 REH Exercise share options
Grantee R-2EME the year theyear R-FEME Date of grant*  BHALT price BREZ
ARA -B-A AEERR FEEHE TZAZt-8 RERE*  ZROER- g~ il
Business Associates
EBBEAL
In aggregate 1,320,000 - - 1,320,000 21 January 2000 HK$3.175 HK$2.532 21 January 2001
B to 20 January
2010
3 %3 3AT5ET 253287 —2%-
-A=t-A -A=1-H
E_R-ZE
-AZfH
500,000 - - 500,000 27 June 2002 HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003
to 29 May 2012
Z%%C 0.415% 7 0.431%7 —%%=
AAZTEA ABZt+tA
ECR-Cf
RAZtAR
17,400,000 - - 17,400,000 27 November 2003 HK$0.23 HK$0.233 27 November 2003
to 29 May 2012
“%3%= 0.23%T 0.233%7 —%%=
T-AZTtH t-A-+thA
ECR-Cf
RAZtAR
19,220,000 - - 19,220,000
Total
BE 51,780,000 (1,520,000) (405,000) 49,855,000

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

*%k

*kk

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of the grant of the share options is the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s consolidated reserves and
the movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 31 of the financial

statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 1999 over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor. Certain goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as detailed

in note 15 to the financial statements.

29.

30.
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30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f#fE (@
(b) Company AT
Share
premium  Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
R4 RER BARS 2EEE ot
Note HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it &t FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2003 R-BE=4-A—8 341,071 39,431 (258,567) 121,935
Net loss for the year KEEFER - = (51,141) (51,141)
At 31 December 2003 HR-ZEZ=F
and 1 January 2004 +-A=+-— &
—EENFE—-A—H 341,071 39,431 (309,708) 70,794
Exercise of share options 77 {f i % 1 203 = = 203
(Note 29) (Kizt29)
Net loss for the year XEEEER - - (17,033) (17,033)
At 31 December 2004 R -ZEZTNF
+-f=+-8 341,274 39,431 (326,741) 53,964

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the same
reorganisation as mentioned in note 30(a) above, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus is

currently unable to be distributed.

Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEBEER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a) Major non-cash transactions

0] During the year ended 31 December 2004, a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary waived
an amount of HK$657,000 (2003: Nil) due
from that subsidiary to that minority

shareholder (note 5).

(i) During the year ended 31 December 20083,
the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of fixed assets with a
total capital value at the inception of the
leases of HK$260,000.

(iii) Pursuant to an assignment agreement dated
14 April 2003, an amount of HK$10,000,000
of consideration receivable from several
purchasers in connection with the disposal of
the DMX Technologies Group Limited (“DMX”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “DMX
Group”) was set off against the considerations
payable to a minority shareholder in
connection with the Group’s initial acquisition
of a 51% equity interest in the DMX Group.

COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for office premises are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to two and half years. The terms
of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according

to the then prevailing market conditions.

3. HRRTRERZME

(a) TEFRAEXS

(i) Br-—TEmE+—A=
+—BIFE —HHBA
Az —HLEBRRAREZ
MEBARARZLIBBRRZ
7K IE657,0008 T (Z T F
=ZF &) (HE5) .

(ii) HE-ZE=F+=-A=
T—HRIEFE KAEBEGE
TEEVRMERERE
RETVHARKEEEEZ
B 7N 48 {8 /260,000 7T ©

(iii) BERRAR_ZZT=FN
A+HAzEERZ st
£ DMX Technologies
Group Limited ([DMX] ) &
HME AR (578 [DMXE
H|)EWZREF 2RE
10,000,000/ 7t - E K 85 1t
ANEE ) WHEDMXE E
51%M& RNiEm ERN — R D
HRRZRE-

32. EE
AEEREELAERHRAEETFTETIE
Y E T AT B — EME LT Zo

HEGRR-—RITERBEPINRES L
REAREBERDSRARNEHRHEHES-
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32. COMMITMENTS (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company and the Group had

total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of land and buildings falling due

as follows:

AE (E)

REER BEFELHREBFH AR
HEEEY ARFRAEEENLTHHE

AR RRERSEBNT:

Group Company
KE PNV
2004 2003 2004 2003
—BBNE —TT=F ZFENF _—TT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year —F A 1,958 2,466 448 458
In the second to E_EZERF
fifth years, (BERMEF
inclusive BEEAN) 476 503 322 -
2,434 2,969 770 458

Save as aforesaid, the Company and the Group did not have

any other significant commitments as at 31 December 2004.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HAREE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided REER ARBBERERPEEZXRE
for in the financial statements were as follows: (N
Group Company
rEH AN
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EENE —TT=F ZTENF —TT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TFET FHET
= [
Guarantees given to banks in L% T & T B
connection with banking RNAZRTT
facilities granted to certain B R M4 ¥
subsidiaries 172 1R - - 20,000 20,000
b
i
As at 31 December 2004, the banking facilities granted to ZETWEST A=+ —H WEBR -
the subsidiaries were utilised to the extent of approximately BB A ERIRITEEELY1,170,000% T o
HK$1,170,000 (2003: HK$4,528,000). (ZZTZT =4 :4,528,000&T) ° :'
_ S _ °
The Group had a contingent liability in respect of possible TSR S — SR REER — :
future long service payments to employees under the Hong TE—fF+ - A=+ —AREEAEEE @
Kong Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible st BEFEARES SN ESBBLES =
amount of HK$890,000 as at 31 December 2003, as further B REE A 855 E890,000 T o 5 5k 2
explained in note 3 to the financial statements. The contingent REBEEERNETHENERES NEE :

liability has arisen as a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group,
to the balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for long
service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance if their employment is terminated under certain
circumstances. A provision has not been recognised in respect
of such possible payments, as it is not considered probable
that the situation will result in a material future outflow of

resources from the Group.

EHARBAEENFHEERTBREMBIE
JIFEEFH MEEZERARETER
BERLE-NEEREDNKRARB S -HRAE
FERBZBATTRERAKEERE
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31 December 2004 —ZEZTPIFE+—A=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34.

In addition to those disclosed in elsewhere in the financial

FHEALXRS

B BHRREMED

P 5 E 5N MRS

statements, the Group had the following transactions with EAEEEEHEATETUATRS
related parties during the year:
2004 2003
—EZTNE TET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T F¥ET
Purchases of information MATREREEARMNE®:
technology products from:
Related companies BBERQT
— a company in which —ARRAIMBAR —BES
a director of REEEFZRA
a subsidiary of the
Company is also
a director - 416
— a company in which —ARR—REEHRT
a director of the =S A/NE]
Company is also
a director - 1,361
Advance to investee companies, NTPHIRERG 28
in which a director of the KRR —HEFHRME
Company is also a director HE = (KM17)
(note 17) 23,045 8,539
Management fee income ERERE AT
received from investee BEBERA
companies 124 _
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31 December 2004 —ZEZTPUFE+—A=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 4. EBHEALXRZ (H#)
2004 2003
—EENF —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBET FET
Reimbursement of directors’ W E A RE
remuneration by an investee EExMe
company 756 -
Loan interest income received BRI ERARER /—
from investee companies B A 227 =
Management fee income ERARBESESTAEES 2
received from a company in —RABEEBRA
which a director of the Company i
is also a director 162 - -
=
Proceeds on sale of HEBTETEEMSRERS: &
fixed assets received from: E
— a company in which —RRAEERME =
directors of the EEZRF =
Company are @
also directors - 100 2
<
Maintenance and ENRERBEMEERT:
consultancy fees paid to:
— a company in which —ARR—REEFHRT
a director of the =S A/NE]

Company is also

a director 364 2,123
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35.

31 December 2004 —ZEZTPIFE+—A=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were entered into by the Group in the ordinary
course of business and on terms agreed with the related
parties. The directors of the Company consider that these
transactions were made according to prices and conditions

similar to those offered to other third parties.

Details of the terms of the outstanding balances with related
parties and minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries at
31 December 2004 are set out in notes 17, 20, 21, 23 and

24 to the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 26 April 2005.
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